
 

                    
 
 
 

June 7, 2021 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
June 7, 2021 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-19 
pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming and in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps, Bill Sexton 
and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis 
Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Sexton called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the invocation; 
Commissioner Walker led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: None 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Walker made a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda: 
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may 
take action to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld 
from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the 
Board. 
a) Approval of Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) ABC Board Budget Amendment for 20-21 and a Proposed Budget for 21-22 
d) Interlocal Agreement between Washington & Bertie Counties for Inspection/Fire 

Marshal Services 
  

Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  
   
 PUBLIC FORUM:  None. 
 
 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER:   Chair Sexton recognized Mr. Louis Boone, 
Maintenance Supervisor as the Employee of the Quarter. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  WASHINGTON COUNTY RECOMMENDED BUDGET FOR 
FY22:    Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing on the 
Washington County Recommended Budget for FY22.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  
Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner 
Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, 
yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 Mr. Potter spoke to the Board about some of the information handed to them tonight that 
needs to be inserted into their budget books.  Some of the information was so the County 



 

complies with the rules of GASBY.  One of the other items was the CIP with the projects listed 
as 1’s or 2’s as requested by the Board for a total of approximately $696,000.  He also received a 
request to push $2,200 into Recreation for attendance at the State games which were moved from 
June to July.  Commissioner Walker asked was this the same amount we have been paying for. 
Mr. Potter said it may have increased a little 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to close the public hearing on the 
Washington County Recommended Budget for FY22.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  
Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner 
Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, 
yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE—SOIL & WATER, AND DRAINAGE:  
Ms. Martha Prinsloo, Soil & Water Technician, gave the following presentation.   

  
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
  
 Chair Sexton said Ms. Prinsloo gave a really good presentation. Commissioner Keyes 
said she has seen Ms. Prinsloo in action and she is good at her job. Mr. Potter said Ms. Prinsloo 
does a good job at keeping up with her paperwork. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  EDDIE SMITH SERVICE DISTRICT:    Commissioner Keyes 
made a motion to open the public hearing on the Eddie Smith Service District.  
Commissioner Walker seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  



 

Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Mr. Dwight Respess, 4790 Hwy 32 S, Plymouth, representing 3D Farms, spoke about 

how important drainage is but can’t support the proposed service district because it’s based on 
property value. Consider 153-A Article 9.  Thank you for your consideration.  
 

Mr. Guy Davenport, 63 White Road, Creswell, had a meeting this afternoon where the 
majority of the property owners spoke about the Eddie Smith program and wants to put it back 
like the service district that they’ve always had. 
 

Mr. Selvie James, 1359 Ambrose Road, Creswell, said this project has been going on for 
25 years. Keep it like it is. 
  

Mr. Steve Barnes, 5735 Shore Drive, Creswell, met with others today and they selected 
option #2.  Many farmers put forth work and funding to keep Eddie Smith going.  
 

Mr. Mike Harris, 534 North Slope Road, Roper, said he farms near the railroad bed. They 
had a meeting and he was representing several thousand acres and would like to keep it like it is.  
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to close the public hearing on the Eddie Smith 
Service District.  Commissioner Walker seconded. Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 Mr. David Gadd joined the Commissioners’ meeting by ZOOM. Mr. Potter spoke about 
the memo he put together regarding a new Eddie Smith Service District (ESSD) and that it was 
in the Commissioners’ package.  Mr. Potter thanked Mr. Davenport for his patience with the 
County as we try to understand this process.  We now know that farmers would like to keep the 
Special Assessment District as it is now.  Mr. Potter said he defers to the Board. Mr. Potter 
thanked all the farmers for their time and patience.  Mr. Gadd discussed the reason to change it 
from a Special Assessment District to a Service District.  The laws that regulate each of these is 
different. It may be more cumbersome for the County, but it can be done.  
 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 



 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



 

 Mr. Potter said the Board doesn’t have to vote on this tonight.  A Special Assessment  
District doesn’t have a time constraint on it like if they were making it a Service District. Chair 
Sexton said if they have any issues, they can come back to the Board.   
 
 COVID-19 AND VACCINE UPDATE:  Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Health Department 
Director gave an update on COVID-19 and the vaccines.  
 
 

 



 

 
 
 



 

 Chair Sexton thanked Mr. Gray for his presentation. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes said there will be presentations made to some area churches on the 
vaccinations this Sunday and hopefully that will help increase vaccinations. 
 
 Mr. Potter said he’s been reading the Executive Orders from the Governor and the 
Governor has lifted masks in office areas, but still says to maintain 3 ft. as long as the court 
system does. The Board can decide the direction the County goes. Mr. Gray said it’s up to each 
County to decide on what they would like do.  
 
 Chair Sexton said to do away with masks.  Commissioner Walker said to do away with 
masks. Commissioner Johnson said to do away with masks. Commissioner Keyes said people 
should be able to wear a mask if they want to.  Mr. Potter said the County would still provide 
masks in the Administration Building foyer for those who want to wear them.  Chair Sexton said 
he’s ok with the staff of County offices not having to wear masks. 
 
 Mr. Gray also thanked Mr. Boone for the handicap ramps he built out at MTW. 

 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW:  

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to re-convene as the Board of Equalization 

& Review.  Commissioner Keyes seconded, motion carried unanimously.  Chair Sexton 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   
Motion carried unanimously.  

Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator, noted there were no appeals as of today.  
Citizens can contact the Tax Office with any questions at 252-793-1176. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to adjourn the Board of Equalization & 

Review. Commissioner Walker seconded. Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  

 
WATER REVENUE BOND DISCUSSION:  Mr. Potter went over the following 

resolution. Mr. Ted Cole, Davenport and Company and Mr. Bob Jessup were in attendance. Mr. 
Cole talked about what the County has at the moment.  



 

 



 

 



 

 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

  



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked if Mr. Cole was positive that this would be approved by the 

bank. Mr. Cole said the audits have been checked and they are up-to-date with no findings. Mr. 
Cole went over the fees and said they will not exceed $69,500.  They would be included in the 
borrowing.  Mr. Potter said that the penalty fee from the bank for early payoff may be waived. 
Mr. Potter said staff is comfortable with doing this.  

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to move forward with re-funding the County’s 

Water Revenue Bond.  Commissioner Keyes seconded. Chair Sexton proceeded with the 
roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, 
yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
 

 
 FY22 BUDGET DISCUSSION:   
 Chair Sexton said he wanted to discuss Courthouse security.  Chair Sexton told the Board 
that he and Mr. Potter met with the Sheriff.  Chair Sexton asked the Sheriff to check with other 
counties to see how they handle their Courthouse security.  Chair Sexton would like to roll the 
money in the security fund to the Sheriff’s budget to hire two deputies to handle Courthouse 
security.  Chair Sexton said Mr. Potter talked with the Register of Deeds and he did not have any 
issues with making a change.  
 
 Commissioner Keyes said she thinks it would lead more credence to have a deputy in that 
position and more of a sense of authority.  Commissioner Walker said he agreed but asked how 
much money are we talking about spending.  Mr. Potter said the funding is in the Facilities line.  
Mr. Potter said there may be a chance to use ARP funds for this. Commissioner Johnson asked 
how much more it will cost the County.  Mr. Potter said it would just about double.  In FY20, the 
cost was $54,000; so the amount is close to about $60,000 for basic security guards. It will be 
about $150,000 for the personnel (2 certified deputies), but then there would be equipment –even 
possibly a new vehicle.  Commissioner Keyes asked about looking for grants to help purchase 
the equipment. Mr. Potter said he’s not aware of any grants at the present time for Courthouse 
security. Commissioner Walker asked would this take effect on July 1.  Mr. Potter said not 
necessarily because the sheriff has to hire staff.  The County can get out of its contract with the 
current security agency at any time.  Commissioner Johnson said her issue is that we don’t have 
to do it to this extent.  Chair Sexton feels the County does need good security and feels this is the 
better way to do it.  
 
 Mr. Potter said if he is directed he can incorporate an additional $90,000 for this and the 
Board can take it up when the budget is presented for approval.  He would like to meet again on 
June 14 at 6:00 PM.  
 



 

 Commissioner Walker said safety is a priority and feels the County needs to have the best 
for our citizens and our employees. 
 
 Mr. Potter said he is waiting for updated fees from EMS,  and there will be the increase 
of  the Solid Waste fee of $25 (from $275 to $300)  and reducing what the citizens can take to 
the landfill from 4 tons to 1 ton. Also the Recreation Department has requested to waive 
insurance ($15/participant for each year) and fees to play the sports for this summer due to the 
lack of participants in the program.  The parents are having difficulty coming up with these funds 
for their kids.  The Board could waive one of these requests or two of them or none of them. 
Discussion ensued. Commissioner Keyes said that if waiving the insurance will help get kids to 
sign up, it’s worth it.  Mr. Potter said the ARP funds could be used to cover the insurance and 
fees.  Commissioner Phelps said to waive the fees for this year and try to use ARP funds.  
Commissioner Johnson said she would like to see the fee schedule. Mr. Potter said he would 
send it to all of the Board.  
 
 Mr. Potter mentioned that the paving of the DSS parking lot and the Senior Center 
parking lot was pulled out of the budget.  
 
 Mr. Potter said he would like to have an Open House for prospective vendors to 
understand how the County works when it comes to RFP’s and bids and bid openings. 
Discussion ensued.  
  
 DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE TO THE NCACC’S CONFERENCE AND 
TO THE NACo CONFERENCE:  Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board spoke to the 
Commissioners and noted that she received the following information. 
 



 

 



 

 
 



 

 



 

 
  
 The Board opted to bring this back to the July 6, 2021 meeting. 
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
JCPC 
 

Ms. Bennett said she attached a JCPC membership list (submitted by the JCPC) with the 
ones noted that will need to be appointed in their agenda package.   The names in yellow are 
current members whose terms expire June 30, 2021.  They are interested in being re-appointed 
for another 2 year term.  Dr. Linda Carr, Superintendent, is willing to serve in her position.  She 
will be a new appointment.  Terri Gallop, was a designee in that position, but will move down to 
an At-Large position.  Deborah Price Fonville is retiring and will not need to be re-appointed.  
Along with Dr. Carr, the other 2 new members are Jakela Bryant, Court Counselor in Plymouth, 
who will fill the previously vacant At-Large position and Ni’chelle Caldwell, who will fill one of 
the persons under the age of 21 positions, that also have been vacant. 
 



 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the appointments and re-

appointments to the JCPC as presented.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Chair Sexton 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Northeastern Workforce Development Board (NWDB) 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked the Commissioners and the Clerk for assistance in 
identifying a new appointee to replace Diane White (Business Representative—Washington 
County) who is resigning from the NWDB. 
 

Commissioner Sexton asked the Board to try to bring back names to the next meeting. 
 
 FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon said the budget transfers, budget 
amendments and the financial report were in the Commissioners’ package.  Ms. Dixon said that 
they have received some of the ARP funds today.  
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the budget amendments/transfers 
as presented above.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the 
roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, 
yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
 
 Commissioner Johnson said the NCACC had a good visit with Senator Tillis.  They 
received his thoughts on some of the funding. It was a good visit. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes said that EIC asked the County for a donation for their POP UP day 
and she and Ms. Vanessa Joyner, Senior Center Director, took a big truckload of sanitizer to 
them in Hertford. 
 



 

 Commissioner Johnson said Martin County will have one soon too and would like 
something from us. 
 
 Ms. Keyes said she had a letter that the County Manager’s office assisted with for the 
invitation to the Human Relations Council and the Citizens’ Academy.  Mr. Potter said that the 
County is still working on having a Citizen’s Academy to give the public a view of what happens 
in County business and how it is run.  Mr. Potter said he would circulate the letter to the Board 
after a date/time is chosen.   
 
 Chair Sexton asked how the Airport Committee is coming.  Mr. Potter said that Ms. 
Moscato is working on it and will get the invitation letter out soon.  Chair Sexton said the 
County has a pilot in our audience—Mr. Dwight Respess.  Chair Sexton asked if Mr. Respess if 
he would like to be on the Airport Committee.  He said yes, he would like to be on it.  
   
 Mr. Potter stated that tomorrow the Chair and some staff will attend training on our 
distressed water system. 
 
 Mr. Potter said the automated call will go out tomorrow to citizens who have not paid 
their water bills yet. 
 
 Mr. Potter said the County had a lightning strike at the Senior Center on Thursday.  It 
messed up the phones, computers, router, etc. We will help the Senior Center as much as we can 
but since we are nearing the end of this fiscal year may have to wait before ordering new 
equipment and do it in the new budget. 
 
 Mr. Potter received a request from the Roanoke Development Center (RDC) that if the 
County has any vehicles being surplused, they would like to have one. 
 

Commissioner Walker made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)--attorney-client privilege, NCGS§143-318.11(a)(4) (economic 
development) and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel.  Commissioner Keyes 
seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; 
Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Back in Open Session, at 9:20 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner 
Keyes made a motion to recess to June 14, 2021@ 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room 
and by ZOOM to livestream to the County’s Facebook page.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded. Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; 
Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Sexton, yea.   Motion carried unanimously.  

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
       William R. “Bill” Sexton          Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

         Chair        Clerk to the Board   


